
 

ADDENDUM # 1 
RFP #06-16—CLASSIFICATION & 

COMPENSATION CONSULTANT SERVICES 
CITY OF HOPEWELL 

 
JANUARY 13, 2016 

 

 
The City of Hopewell has received and reviewed the below questions 
related to RFP #06-16 – Classification & Compensation Consultant 
Services, and offers the following responses as Addendum #1.  Please 
acknowledge receipt of this addendum by signing and including page 6 
as part of your proposal response. 
 
II. BACKGROUND 
 

1) Of the 450 City positions referenced in the RFP, how many are 
full-time and part-time and will part-time employees be included 
in this study?  Part-time positions may not be included in this 
study.  We currently have 344 full-time employees. 
 

2) Of your 165 job classifications, how many are used within each 
of your eleven (11) departments?  How many do you consider 
generic for use throughout the City’s departments?  We do have 
generic job classifications such as Administrative Assistants, 
Business Manager, Executive Assistants, and Sr. Exec. Assistants.  
Most of the City’s classifications are department oriented.   

 
3) We see the last major study was conducted in 2003.  Was that 

project as comprehensive in scope as this RFP?  Yes, it was as 
comprehensive.  However, an in-house study was done in 2008 
that looked at very specific positons within the City.  It was 
partially implemented. 

 
 



 2 

4) Who was the successful vendor and what was the approved 
contract cost for that work?  Palmer and Cay was awarded the 
contract.  Since this contract was back in 2003, the actual billing 
information and the contract are no longer available.   

 
III. SCOPE OF WORK 
 
CLASSIFICATION 
 

1) How many salary scales does the City of Hopewell currently use?  
Also, how many grades and steps are in each scale(s).  We 
currently have 18 grades for FT (Grades 15-32).  Our PT grade 
scale includes 11-14 as well. 
 

2) Do you currently use longevity steps as a formal part of the 
salary structure?  If so, how many longevity steps are there?  
This is not part of current system.  However, we would like to 
incorporate pay for performance in the future. 

 
3) When was the last time your job descriptions were updated and 

by whom?  What process was used to review and update your 
job descriptions at that time and subsequently? Please provide 
one representative sample of your current job descriptions for 
each major job category (i.e., management, professional, 
administrative, labor, trades, etc.).  The job descriptions were 
officially updated in 2003 by Palmer and Cay.  However, they 
have been updated subsequently by HR staff as needed with 
assistance from the Class and Compensation Committee.  Copies 
are included for your review - See Attachment A. 

 
4) Do you have an annual reclassification review and appeals 

process to review and update your job descriptions?  HR 
conducts reclassifications as needed with assistance from the 
Class and Compensation Committee.   
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5) What percentage of your workforce do you desire the consultant 
to conduct position audits?  Are you interested in ensuring this 
review is conducted for a given percentage of your workforce or 
a representative sampling of your more heavily populated and 
utilized jobs?  This will be determined during the negotiations 
with the selected vendor.  However, we would like to do a 
complete audit of the positons for the City.   

 
6) Would the City consider the consultant conducting individual 

employee position interviews only in cases where additional 
information and/or clarification is required following review of 
the employee’s and department management’s submitted job 
content?  Yes.  However, this will be determined during the 
negotiations with the selected vendor. 

 
7) What type of job evaluation plan do you currently use to 

evaluate, align and grade your positions?  What forms are 
currently in use to capture job content and classify the various 
positions within the workforce?  Please provide a copy of your 
job evaluation plan.  We use a Job Classification System that was 
developed by Palmer and Cay.  It consists of 9 factors that we 
use to determine the grade of a position.  A copy of the system 
has been attached for your review – See Attachment B.  We 
would be open to any proposed new classification system. 

 
8) How many meetings do you anticipate for the consultant and 

the City Manager, Directors, and City Council for the duration of 
the study? Are these separate meetings or will there be 
representative(s) from each group attending these meetings?  It 
is anticipated that the City will conduct separate meetings with 
Directors (including upper management) that may include the 
City Manager as needed.  Again, this may be determined during 
the negotiations with the vendor of choice.  However, the 
vendor will participate in the Council meetings as needed.   
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COMPENSATION 
 

1) For the salary and benefits survey, how much detail do you want 
included in the benefits portion of the survey?  For example, are 
you looking for an overview of the general competitiveness of 
your benefits programs or an analysis of the detailed elements 
and provisions (e.g., medical deductibles, out of pocket 
maximums, retirement formulas, specific service requirements, 
etc.) for each of your benefit plans?  The City is concerned about 
the competiveness of the benefits we offer to the employees.  
But our focus is on the classifications, job descriptions, FLSA 
designations and salary structure.   
  

2) With regard to job certificates, do you currently reward 
employees monetarily for acquiring these certificates whether 
they are required or not to perform their job duties?  The City 
has career ladders in place that rewards employees for 
completing certain career paths within their classification.  We 
do not offer anything outside the career ladders.   

 
3) What plan do you currently have in place to evaluate employee 

performance and how long has this plan been in place?  What 
concerns and issues currently exist relative to evaluating 
employee performance?  Please provide a copy of your current 
performance appraisal program.  The City is pleased with the 
current Employee Development/Performance system that we 
use.  A copy is provided for your review – See Attachment C.   

 
4) Do you currently have a Personnel Manual and/or Employee 

Handbook that includes all the policies, programs and 
procedures regarding classification and compensation?  Do 
these documents need minor updating or complete revision 
regarding classification and compensation administration and 
ongoing maintenance and communication of your current 
system?  The City’s Personnel Manual is in the process of being 
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revised.  This section will need revising upon the adoption of a 
new classification plan. 

 
5) Regarding the required 180 days to complete this project, does 

that refer to calendar days or actual workdays (Monday-Friday, 
five days per week)?  This time limit would be based on 
workdays.  However, it may be negotiable depending on the 
vendor of choice.   
      

6) Is there a preferred number of benchmark positions to be used 
for the salary and benefits survey?  This will be determined 
during negotiations.   
 

 
SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS 
 

1) Is the consultant limited as to the length of the sample Final 
Report and related Job Descriptions to be submitted with our 
proposal?  There is no limit to the length of the sample final 
report or related job descriptions.   

 
2)  Do we submit a cost with this proposal OR at a later date, if 

requested?  The cost is expected at the time of the proposal.   
 
 
GENERAL  
 

1)  When do anticipate an award and start of this project?  The City 
anticipates awarding this project approximately 60 days after 
the Bid Opening Date.  The start of this project will be 
determined during negotiations. 
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Please sign and include this form as part of your proposal response 
to verify receipt of Addendum # 1. 

 

 
 
April L. Cone, Purchasing Officer 
 
 
 

Signature of Receipt of 
Addendum # 1 

 Date 

 
 

  

Company Name   
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